
 

NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
AGENDA 

 
 
 

SEPTEMBER 12, 2011 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted By 
The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�




 

 

TO: The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda. Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members. I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 



 

 

 

 
VISION: 
To honor the legacy of the past and build a strong, vibrant future and be an 
attractive place to live, work, and grow a business. 
 
GOALS: 
Provide a safe, clean, and livable city 
 Practice good stewardship of infrastructure  
 Maintain high quality professional community oriented police and fire protection 
 Conserve resources in an environmentally responsible manner 
 Encourage development toward a walkable, livable community 
 
Provide effective and efficient local government 
 Demonstrate excellence in community services 
 Maintain fiscally sustainable government 
 Attract and support a committed and innovative workforce 
 Develop and maintain efficiencies with internal and external partners 
 Conduct city business and engage in public policy formation in a clear and 

transparent manner 
 
Build a sense of community 
 Communicate internally and externally in a timely and accurate manner 
 Develop platforms for transparent, deliberative and meaningful community 

conversations 
 Involve all stakeholders in communication and engagement activities 
 Encourage volunteerism and new methods for community involvement 
 Implement the connectedness of community outlines in the Master Plan 2008 
 
Attract and retain business investment 
 Clearly articulate an economic development plan 
 Create an inclusive, entrepreneurial culture internally and externally 
 Clarify, reduce and streamline investment hurdles 
 Consistently enhance the synergy between existing businesses and growing 

economic sectors 
 Market the advantages of living and working in Troy through partnerships 

 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 

VISION STATEMENT AND GOALS 
Adopted: Monday, February 7, 2011 

 



 

 

 

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
September 12, 2011 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers 
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION: Pastor A.C. Phipps – Evanswood Church of God 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 1 

C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations 1 

a) Proclamation – Patriot Week September 11 – 17, 2011 ...................................... 1 
b) Proclamation in Recognition of James and Betty Savage on the Occasion of 

Their 60th Anniversary .......................................................................................... 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

E-1 No Public Hearings 1 



 

 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT: 2 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 2 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 2 

H-1  No Postponed Items 2 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 2 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: None Scheduled 2 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled 2 

I-3 Request for Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 2 

I-4 Confirmation of Appointment of Aileen Bittner as City Clerk 2 

I-5 Bid Waiver – Casualty and Property Insurance – Two (2) Year Renewal with the 
Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority (MMRMA) for November 2011-
2012 and November 2012-2013 3 

I-6 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award - Communications Strategy 3 

I-7 Approval of MDOT Capital Contract for the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility, 
MDOT Contract No. 2011-0231, Project No. 113143 4 

I-8 Proposed Amendment to the Three Year Budget; Retention of Two Sergeants and 
Two Police Officers 5 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 5 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 5 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 6 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 6 

a) Regular City Council Meeting of August 29, 2011 ................................................ 6 



 

 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 6 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 6 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 11-3 – 
Section 35 Pavement Rehabilitation ..................................................................... 6 

J-5 Request for Acceptance of a Sanitary Sewer Easement from Cornerstone Village 
1, LLC – Sidwell #88-20-27-201-049 6 

J-6 Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions 6 

J-7 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Ann Walsh – 
Morse Elementary School PTO 7 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 7 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 7 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  
some future point in time): None Submitted 7 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 7 

L-1  Council Referrals: None Submitted 7 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 7 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 7 

N. REPORTS 7 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 7 

a) Election Commission-Final-June 29, 2011 ........................................................... 7 
b) Planning Commission-Final-August 9, 2011 ........................................................ 7 
c) Election Commission-Draft-September 1, 2011 ................................................... 7 

N-2 Department Reports: None Submitted 7 

N-3  Letters of Appreciation: 8 



 

 

a) Letter of Appreciation from John Siedlik and Erin Whaley of Binson’s Home 
Health Care Centers to the Troy Fire Department ................................................ 8 

b) Letter of Appreciation from John F. Myszak, III, of Somerset Collection to 
Chief Mayer, Thanking Sgt. Szuminski, Officer Morgan and Officer Bordo .......... 8 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 8 

N-5  Notice of Hearing for the Gas Customers of Consumers Energy Company Case 
No. U-16149-R 8 

N-6  Resolution #11097 – Oakland County Board of Commissioners – Support for 
Amending MCL 168-449(3) to Eliminate the Requirement that Local Clerks Send 
Corrected Voter Identification Cards Due to Redistricting Resulting from the 
Decennial Census 8 

O. STUDY ITEMS 8 

O-1  Study Item 8 

P. CLOSED SESSION: 8 

P-1  No Closed Session Requested 8 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 8 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 8 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 9 

Monday, September 26, 2011 Regular Meeting ...................................................... 9 
Monday, October 3, 2011 Regular Meeting ............................................................. 9 
Monday, October 17, 2011 Regular Meeting ........................................................... 9 
Monday, November 14, 2011 Regular Meeting ....................................................... 9 
Monday, November 21, 2011 Regular Meeting ....................................................... 9 
Monday, November 28, 2011 Regular Meeting ....................................................... 9 
Monday, December 5, 2011 Regular Meeting ......................................................... 9 
Monday, December 19, 2011 Regular Meeting ....................................................... 9 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 9 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA September 12, 2011 
 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION: Pastor A.C. Phipps – Evanswood Church of God 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 
a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 

Robin Beltramini 
Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mayor Pro Tem Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

 
b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-09-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of                at 
the Regular City Council Meeting of September 12, 2011 due to                      
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations  
 
a)  Proclamation – Patriot Week September 11 – 17, 2011  
b) Proclamation in Recognition of James and Betty Savage on the Occasion of Their 

60th Anniversary 
 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items  
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 No Public Hearings 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA September 12, 2011 
 

- 2 - 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  
In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 – Members of 
the Public and Visitors: 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 
 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 

the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 

(5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 

minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or any other item 
as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment portion of the agenda. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City Council 
members. 

• City Council may wish to schedule a Special Meeting for Agenda items that are related to 
topics where there is significant public input anticipated. 

• Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public Comment may be 
limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to speak either on a Public 
Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of the agenda. 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1  No Postponed Items 
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: None Scheduled 
 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
I-3 Request for Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 
 
I-4 Confirmation of Appointment of Aileen Bittner as City Clerk 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-09-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA September 12, 2011 
 

- 3 - 

WHEREAS, Aileen Bittner has fulfilled all requirements of the Certified Municipal Clerk (CMC) 
program of the International Institute of Municipal Clerks (IIMC); 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council CONFIRMS the City Manager’s 
Appointment of Aileen Bittner as City Clerk. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-5 Bid Waiver – Casualty and Property Insurance – Two (2) Year Renewal with the 

Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority (MMRMA) for November 2011-
2012 and November 2012-2013 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-09-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, On April 18, 2011, City Council authorized City management to negotiate a new 
agreement for Casualty and Property Insurance with the Michigan Municipal Risk Management 
Authority (MMRMA) (Resolution #2011-04-085-J-5); and 
 
WHEREAS, The MMRMA has provided an exceptional offer of a two-year agreement under the 
same terms and conditions as the previous agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, The agreement includes a 21.9% net decrease in the first year (2011/2012) and a 
not-to-exceed 5% premium increase in the second year (2012/2013) offset by any net asset 
distribution check received;   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal 
bidding procedures and EXERCISES the new agreement  with the MMRMA to provide 
Casualty and Property Insurance for a premium of $333,347 in 2011/2012, and a not to exceed 
premium of $350,014 in 2012/2013. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, This contract also includes the maintenance of a positive loss 
fund balance of up to $150,000 expiring November 7, 2013.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-6 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award - Communications Strategy 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-09-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA September 12, 2011 
 

- 4 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to develop a comprehensive 
communications strategy to Marketing Associates of Detroit, MI, the firm with the highest score 
as a result of a best value process from the formal solicitation identified as RFP-COT 11-13, as 
amended on June 20, 2011, which the Troy City Council determines to be in the public interest 
at an estimated total cost of $100,000.00 including reimbursables not-to-exceed $5,000.00, in 
accordance with the schedule of values attached as Appendix I. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the firm’s submission of 
properly executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance certificates, and all 
other specified requirements; and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
an Agreement when in acceptable form.   
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-7 Approval of MDOT Capital Contract for the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility, MDOT 

Contract No. 2011-0231, Project No. 113143 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-09-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, A 2.41 acre site was deeded to the City of Troy as part of a Consent Judgment, with 
the condition that it be developed as a transit facility;   
  
WHEREAS, The City of Troy received a $8,485,212 federal grant to fund the transit facility 
project through the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) High-Speed Intercity 
Passenger Rail (HSIPR) Program, Federal Rail Administration (FRA), secured through a 
TIGER grant; and  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy received a $1,300,000 Federal Congressional Bus & Bus 
Facilities earmark to fund the project through the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), secured 
by Congressman Gary Peters; and 
 
WHEREAS, The facility will be served by AMTRAK and the Suburban Mobility Authority for 
Regional Transportation (SMART), which will utilize the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility as a 
central hub for their bus network; and  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility complements transit oriented initiatives 
throughout southeast Michigan, including the Woodward Light Rail and Detroit Region 
Aerotropolis projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, Studies show that investment in public transit yields economic benefit to the 
surrounding area; and 
 
WHEREAS, Public transportation provides transportation options, allows for mobility for 
underserved populations, provides congestion mitigation, creates jobs, assists in retaining 
young talent and helps regions to be competitive in the global economy. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA September 12, 2011 
 

- 5 - 

 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES MDOT Capital 
Contract No. 2011-0231 between the City of Troy and the Michigan Department of 
Transportation for the final design and construction of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility at 
an estimated cost to the City of Troy of $0.00, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to 
EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-8 Proposed Amendment to the Three Year Budget; Retention of Two Sergeants and 

Two Police Officers 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-09-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The Early Retirement Incentive Program/Concession initiative not only reduced 
reliance on Fund Balance, but also created projected revenues exceeding projected 
expenditures for the first two years of the three year budget; And 
 
WHEREAS, The International City/County Management Association (ICMA) in their 
organizational restructuring and economic sustainability study indicates that the police 
department will not be sustainable unless four of the thirty eight sworn positions slated for 
elimination are retained; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council APPROVES the City Manager’s 
recommendation to incorporate these four police department positions in the three year budget. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-09-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item(s)  ______________      , which SHALL BE 
CONSIDERED after Consent Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA September 12, 2011 
 

- 6 - 

Yes:       
No:       
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-09-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 

a) Regular City Council Meeting of August 29, 2011 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions  
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 11-3 – Section 

35 Pavement Rehabilitation 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-09-      
 
RESOLVED, That contract No. 11-3, Section 35 Pavement Rehabilitation, be AWARDED to 
Ajax Paving Industries, Inc., 830 Kirts Blvd., Suite 100, Troy, MI 48084 for their low total bid 
amount of $860,776.00; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT UPON submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 25% of the total project cost. 
 
J-5 Request for Acceptance of a Sanitary Sewer Easement from Cornerstone Village 1, 

LLC – Sidwell #88-20-27-201-049 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-09-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the sanitary sewer easement from 
Cornerstone Village 1, LLC, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-27-201-049; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-6 Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA September 12, 2011 
 

- 7 - 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-09-      
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy does hereby WAIVE the No Parking 
restrictions on the East side of Northfield Parkway from the parking lot entrance to 
Congregation Shir Tikvah to the entrance to Boulan Park, on Wednesday, September 28, 
2011, 7:00 pm – 11:00 pm, Thursday, September 29, 2011, 9:00 am – 5:00 pm, Friday, 
October 7, 2011, 7:00 pm – 11:00 pm, and Saturday, October 8, 2011, 9:00 am – 9:00 pm. 
 
J-7 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Ann Walsh – 

Morse Elementary School PTO 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-09-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Morse Elementary 
School PTO asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in the 
community for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license as recommended by City 
Management. 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time): None Submitted 

 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

L-1  Council Referrals: None Submitted 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 

N. REPORTS 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Election Commission-Final-June 29, 2011 
b) Planning Commission-Final-August 9, 2011 
c) Election Commission-Draft-September 1, 2011 

N-2 Department Reports: None Submitted 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA September 12, 2011 
 

- 8 - 

N-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation from John Siedlik and Erin Whaley of Binson’s Home Health Care 

Centers to the Troy Fire Department 
b) Letter of Appreciation from John F. Myszak, III, of Somerset Collection to Chief Mayer, 

Thanking Sgt. Szuminski, Officer Morgan and Officer Bordo 
 
N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
 
N-5  Notice of Hearing for the Gas Customers of Consumers Energy Company Case 

No. U-16149-R 
 
N-6  Resolution #11097 – Oakland County Board of Commissioners – Support for 

Amending MCL 168-449(3) to Eliminate the Requirement that Local Clerks Send 
Corrected Voter Identification Cards Due to Redistricting Resulting from the 
Decennial Census 

 

O. STUDY ITEMS 
O-1  Study Item 
 

P. CLOSED SESSION:  

P-1  No Closed Session Requested 
 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA September 12, 2011 
 

- 9 - 

 
SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 

Monday, September 26, 2011 .......................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, October 3, 2011 ................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
Monday, October 17, 2011 .............................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 14, 2011 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 21, 2011 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 28, 2011 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, December 5, 2011 ............................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, December 19, 2011 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
 

 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

 



PROCLAMATION 
PATRIOT WEEK 

SEPTEMBER 11 - 17, 2011 
 
WHEREAS, The history and First Principles of the United States of America should serve as the 
cornerstone of civic education. In great reverence to the victims of the 9/11 attacks, we acknowledge that 
American citizens must take time to honor the principles, founders, documents, and symbols of their 
history; and  
 
WHEREAS, The events that led to the signing of The Constitution of the United States of America by the 
delegates of the Constitutional Convention on September 17, 1787, have significance for every American 
and are honored in public schools across the nation on September 17 as Constitution Day; and 
 
WHEREAS, Revolution, the rule of law, social compact, equality, unalienable rights, and limited 
government are the First Principles upon which America was founded and flourishes; and  

WHEREAS,  Exceptional, visionary, and indispensable Americans such as Thomas Paine, Patrick 
Henry, John Adams, John Marshall, George Washington, Abraham Lincoln, Frederick Douglass, Martin 
Luther King, Jr., Elizabeth Cady Stanton, Susan Anthony, Thomas Jefferson, and James Madison 
founded and advanced the United States; and 

WHEREAS, The Bennington Flag, work of Betsy Ross, American Flag, Suffragist Flag, Union Flag, 
Gadsden Flag, and the flag of the state of Michigan are key physical symbols of American history that 
should be studied and remembered by each American citizen;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council does hereby proclaim September 
11-17, 2011 as Michigan Patriot Week in the City of Troy, Michigan, symbolically beginning this 
celebration on September 11 and concluding on Constitution Day; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council calls upon the citizens, businesses, nonprofit 
organizations, and schools in Troy to recognize and participate in this extended holiday by honoring and 
celebrating the First Principles, key historical figures, founding documents, and symbols of America so 
that they may offer the reverence that is due to our free republic.   

Presented this 12th day of September 2011. 
 

bittnera
Text Box
C-01a



PROCLAMATION 
IN RECOGNITION OF JAMES AND BETTY SAVAGE 
ON THE OCCASION OF THEIR 60TH ANNIVERSARY 

 
WHEREAS, James and Betty Savage were united in marriage on September 15th, 1951 at St. Paul’s 
Anglican Church in Warwick, England and are now celebrating their 60th Wedding Anniversary surrounded by 
children and grandchildren; and 
 
WHEREAS, James and Betty were blessed with children Linda and David born in Leamington, England, and 
 
WHEREAS, In 1956, James and Betty moved to London, Ontario and in 1965 moved to Royal Oak where 
they raised Linda and David who both graduated from Dondero High School. In 1976 they moved to their 
present residence in Troy; and 
 
WHEREAS, James worked as a tool and die machinist in service shops around the Detroit area and retired in 
1993. Today, James and Betty love social ballroom dancing had have been very active in area British social 
organizations since 1966; and   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has been a special place for the Savage family. Son David worked for Troy’s 
Department of Public Works while studying at Lawrence Tech and their daughter-in-law Christine works at the 
Troy Community Center; and    
 
WHEREAS, James and Betty’s four grandsons, Justin, James, Bryan and Alexander all attended Wattles 
Elementary School. Grandson James graduated from Troy High School, and grandsons Alexander and Bryan 
graduated from Athens High School.  Grandson James worked for Troy Parks & Recreation Department while 
in high school and Bryan worked three summers for the Public Works Department - Streets Division; and 
 
WHEREAS, James and Betty have earned the respect of all with whom they have come into contact, and the 
love and affection of their children, grandchildren and a host of wonderful friends;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That James and Betty are worthy of this expression of our sincere 
congratulations on this happy occasion of their 60th wedding anniversary; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council and all of Troy’s residents extend best wishes to 
James and Betty for many more years of good health and happiness together.  
 
Presented this 12th day of September 2011 

bittnera
Text Box
C-01b



 
 

1 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
September 9, 2011 
 
 
TO:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
    
SUBJECT: Confirmation of Appointment of Aileen Bittner as City Clerk  
 
 
Acting City Clerk Aileen Bittner has fulfilled all requirements of the Certified Municipal Clerk (CMC) 
program of the International Institute of Municipal Clerks (IIMC).  Since becoming Acting Clerk, Mrs. 
Bittner has performed her job in an excellent fashion.  Confirmation of my appointment is strongly 
recommended. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C: Aileen Bittner, Acting City Clerk 
 Peggy Sears, Human Resources Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JAS/bt\AGENDA ITEMS\2011\09.12.11 – Confirmation of Appointment of Aileen Bittner as City Clerk 

bittnera
Text Box
I-04



bittnera
Text Box
I-05











 

 

Page 1 of 2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 

September 9, 2011 
 
TO:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council   
 
FROM:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
   Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development  

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 

 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 8 – Best Value Award: Communications Strategy  
    
Background 
On June 20, 2011, Troy City Council authorized the release of RFP-COT 11-13, as amended, to solicit formal 
statement of qualifications/request for proposals for a communications strategy in order to meet the City’s 
Visions Statement and Goals for an estimated total cost of $100,000.00 (Resolution #2011-06-143).  The 
purpose of the proposed communications strategy is to provide all stakeholders – City Council, administration, 
employees, residents, business, educational and other interest groups – with a clear, consistent message 
emulating Council’s Vision.  The scope of work includes assistance in:  implementing the Vision and Goals; 
development and implementation of an overall media outreach; categorization and development of concise 
communication tools; website evaluation; ongoing research; implementation of social media strategy; 
collaboration and expansion of stakeholder coalition.  
 
A request for qualifications/proposal (RFQ/RFP) for a Communications Strategy was sent to one-hundred 
thirty-four (134) firms through the Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network (MITN) e-procurement website at 
www.mitn.info. 
 
RFQ/RFPs were received from three (3) companies; as well as three (3) statements of no bid.  All three (3) 
firms met the pass/fail criteria established for the Communications Strategy.   
 
The three firms’ proposals were evaluated independently by a review committee and each individual member 
calculated a weighted score based on their review.  These individual scores were averaged into one score for 
each firm and represents 65% of the overall score. 
 
The three (3) rated firms participated in an interview conducted by the Purchasing Department with the Director 
of Economic & Community Development, Community Affairs Director, Police Captain/Operations and 
Community Relations Director for Sterling Heights as the interview panel.  The interviews were independently 
evaluated by each committee member and the weighted scores were averaged into one score for each firm.  
The interview comprises thirty-five (35) percent of the final score for each firm. 
 
The tabulation was completed by the Purchasing Department.  Marketing Associates received the highest 
score as a result of a best value process. The proposed contract with Marketing Associates will include 
reimbursables not to exceed $5,000.  Marketing Associates offers a complete range of marketing and 
communications services, from research and brand development, integrated marketing and communications 
planning, advertising, public relations, direct and digital solutions, e-marketing and analytics.  Marketing 
Associates has developed communication and marketing plans across a wide range of industries (technology, 
automotive, educational, government, etc.).  Marketing Associates has performed extensive work on economic 
development programs in Michigan including Oakland, Macomb and Wayne Counties and the municipalities of 
Novi, Auburn Hills and West Bloomfield Township. 

bittnera
Text Box
I-06



 

 

Page 2 of 2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
September 9, 2011 
 
 
To:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
Re:  Best Value Award – Communications Strategy  
 
 
Legal Considerations 
RFQ-RFP-COT 11-13, Communications Strategy was competitively bid as required by City Charter and Code. 
The award is contingent upon the firm’s submission of properly executed proposal, contract documents, 
insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.      
 
Fund Availability 
Funds are available in various salary accounts as a result of employee turnover and reductions in staff that 
have vacated budgeted positions; or fund balance; or a combination thereof. 
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends awarding a contract to develop a comprehensive communications strategy to 
the highest rated firm as a result of a best value process, Marketing Associates, 777 Woodward Ave, Suite 
500, Detroit, MI  48226 for an estimated total cost of $100,000.00 including reimbursables not-to-exceed 
$5,000.00, in accordance with the schedule of values attached as Appendix I. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
G:\Bid Award 10-11 New Format\ Best Value SR8 - RFP - Communications Strategy09.11.doc 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - FINAL June 20, 2011 
 

- 7 - 

No: None 
Absent: Beltramini 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-8 Approval of a Communications Strategy RFP 
 
Resolution #2011-06-143 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
Option B: 
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council hereby adopted a Vision Statement and Goals on February 7, 
2011, and directed City Administration to develop objectives to facilitate Council’s goals for 
Council’s consideration at a future date (Resolution #2011-02-023); and 
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council directed management and staff to develop a formal statement of 
qualifications / request for proposals in order to meet the City’s Vision Statement and Goals; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the 
release of RFP-COT 11-13, as amended, to solicit formal statement of qualifications/request for 
proposals for a communications strategy in order to meet the City’s Vision Statement and Goals 
at an estimated total cost of $100,000.00, the process which may take up to ninety (90) days to 
complete. 
 
Yes:  Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling 
No: Howrylak, Fleming 
Absent: Beltramini 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2011-06-144 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) J-4b, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after Consent 
Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:  Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Fleming, Howrylak 
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini 
 





 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

COMMUNICATIONS STRATEGY 
 
 
STATISTICS: 

 
 134 companies were notified via the MITN e-procurement website 

 
 Three (3) proposals and three (3) no bids were received  
 
 All three (3) companies met the pass/fail criteria 
 
 Marketing Associates received the highest score as a result of a best value process  

 
The following three (3) companies received the indicated final scores as a result of 
their proposal and interview. 
   
Company SCORE 
Marketing Associates 88.25 
Marx Layne & Company 75.5 
Basso Design Group 73.4 
  
 
 
 
Attachments: 
 

 Weighted Final Scoring 
 Evaluation Process 
 Original Tabulation 



 
WEIGHTED FINAL SCORING 
Communications Strategy 

 

Final Score Calculation: 
 
65% x Proposal Score 
35% x Interview Score                        
100%   = Final Weighted Score 

 
Vendors are listed in the order they were interviewed for both the proposal and price phase.  For the final 
score the vendors are listed in the order of rating from highest to lowest.  NOTE:  100 point basis for each 
phase. 
 
 

Phase 2:  Weighted Average Score for Proposals: 65%   
Raters: 1 2 3 4 Average Final Weighted 

Score (x .65) 
Vendors:       
Basso Design Group   73 76 78 77 76.0 49.4 
Marx Layne & Company   80 94 75 77 81.5 53 
Marketing Associates 100 67 88 85 85.0 55.25 
 
Phase 3:  Weighted Average Score for Interviews: 35%   
Raters: 1 2 3 4 Average Final Weighted 

Score (x .35) 
Vendors:       
Basso Design Group   52 71 77 73 68.25 24 
Marx Layne & Company   47 75 70 65 64.25 22.5 
Marketing Associates 100 98 84 95 94.25 33 
 
FINAL SCORE:  
VENDORS:  Marketing 

Associates 
Marx Layne & 

Company  
Basso Design 

Group 
Phase 2:  Proposal Score 55.25 53 49.4 
Phase 3:  Interview Score 33 22.5 24 

FINAL SCORE 88.25 75.5 73.4 

 
*HIGHEST RATED VENDOR – RECOMMENDED AWARD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:/ Bid Award 10-11 New Format / Best Value SR8 – RFP – Communications Strategy – WeightedRatingSummary 8.11.doc 

 



 
SELECTION PROCESS 

 
 
CRITERIA FOR SELECTION 
The identified Committee will review the proposals.  The City of Troy reserves the right to award this 
proposal to the firm considered the most qualified based upon a combination of factors including but not 
limited to the following: 
 

A. Compliance with qualifications criteria  
B. Completeness of the proposal 
C. Financial strength and capacity of the firm 
D. Correlation of the proposals submitted to the needs of the City of Troy 
E. Any other factors which may be deemed to be in the City’s best interest 
F. Evaluation Process 

 
 

Phase 1:  Minimum Qualifications Evaluation 
Firms will be required to meet minimum established criteria in order to go to the second phase of the 
process.   

 
 

Phase 2: Evaluation of Proposals 
Each Committee member will independently use a weighted score sheet to evaluate the proposals; each 
Committee Member will calculate a weighted score.  The scores of the Committee Members will be 
averaged into one score for each firm for this phase of the process.   

 
 

Phase 3:  Interview Score  
The City will invite the top rated firms to participate in an interview.  Each Committee Member will 
independently use a weighted score sheet to evaluate the Interview; each Committee Member will 
calculate a weighted score.  The scores of the Committee Members will be averaged into one score for 
each firm for this phase of the process.  Those being interviewed may be supplied with further instructions 
and requests prior to the interview.  Persons representing the firm at the interview must be the personnel 
who will be assigned to this project.  

 
 

Phase 4:  Final Scoring and Selection  
The firm with the highest final weighted score will be recommended to the Troy City Council for Award.   
 
 65% Proposal Score     (100 point base)  
 35% Interview Score     (100 point base)  

 100%       
 
 
 



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 11-13
Opening Date -- 7/19/2011 TABULATION Pg 1 of 1
Date Reviewed -- 8/18/2011 COMMUNICATIONS STRATEGY

sl
COMPANY NAME: Basso Design Group Marx Layne & Company Marketing Associates

PROPOSAL: DEVELOPMENT OF A CITYWIDE COMMUNICATIONS STRATEGY

FOUR (4) COPIES (Attached) Y Y Y

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: (Attached) Y Y Y

SAMPLE DOCUMENT: (Attached) mock-up document mock-up document supplemental info

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX (see exceptions) XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed Y or N Y Y Y

ESTIMATED TOTAL BUDGET: 100,000.00$                      100,000.00$                            100,000.00$                    
(Including Reimbursables)

ESTIMATED # OF HOURS: #                            728 #                              1,000 #                          900

REIMBURSABLES: 9,000.00$                      $                   200.00/month 5,000.00$                   
(Not-To-Exceed)

SCHEDULE OF VALUES: (Attached) Y Y Y

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Blank Net 30

EXCEPTIONS: Insurance - does not carry Blank None
E&O limits will obtain if chosen
See proposal for add'l

exceptions 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Signed  Y or N Y Y Y

ADDENDUM #1 Y / N N N Y

THREE FORMS:
Non-Collusion Y / N Y N Y
Legal Status Y / N Y N Y
Indemnification Clause Y / N Y Y Y

NO BIDS:
The Millerschin Group
Reigroup Inc. 
Rizzi Designs, Inc. 

ATTEST:
Cynthia Stewart
Diane Fisher Susan Leirstein CPPO CPPB
Julie Hamilton Purchasing Director

G:/RFP-COT 11-13 CommunicationStrategy.xls



 
 
September 9, 2011 
 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 

Mark Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
   Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of MDOT Capital Contract for the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility, 

MDOT Contract No. 2011-0231, Project No. 113143 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends that City Council approve the attached MDOT Capital Contract No. 2011-0231 
with the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) for the purpose of fixing the rights and 
obligations of each agency for the final design and construction of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit 
Facility.  The agreement is based on standard MDOT contract language, similar to MDOT contracts 
approved by City Council for federally funded major road projects.  Furthermore, staff recommends 
that the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute the contract.  
   
Relocation of Train Platform to Troy Side: 
 
After Birmingham’s withdrawal from the Transit Center project, the tunnel linking the cities was 
deleted and the project was revised to eliminate improvements in Birmingham.  As part of these 
revisions, the platform was relocated to the Troy side of the Canadian National (CN) railroad.  (copy 
of the previous status report is attached). 
 
As necessary planning took place to implement this change, we were informed that the platform on 
the Troy side required a commitment from Canadian National (CN) railroad to allow the necessary 
track improvements to switch the AMTRAK train from the west track to the east track.  This 
commitment and preliminary switch design plan was secured, however a financial commitment for 20 
year track and switch maintenance, as required by the Federal Rail Administration (FRA), proved 
problematic as neither the City nor AMTRAK was willing to assume the cost of maintaining the 
switches.  Additionally, the east track may be removed by CN in the future due to its poor condition 
and lower freight traffic.  Should that happen, a substantial investment in switches to bring the 
AMTRAK train to the Troy side would be lost. 
 
Proposed Site Plan: 
 
The proposed site plan places the platform on the Birmingham side in CN right-of-way and adds a 
bridge over the tracks from the Troy Multi-Modal Transit building to the platform.  No property from 
Birmingham is required for this design.  There will be no access to the platform from the Birmingham 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

bittnera
Text Box
I-07



2 
 

side, but the revised plan allows access in the future if Birmingham can acquire the necessary 
property.   An elevator and stairs are included on both sides of the bridge.  With the elimination of the 
track switches, grant funding continues to be sufficient to cover the estimated cost of the Troy Multi-
Modal Transit Facility, from final design through construction and completion of all improvements. 
 
Contract Details and Requirements: 
 
The Contract provides funding for the final design and construction of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit 
Facility, which must be completed within 2 years of Contract approval.  On August 23, 2011 The FRA 
indicated to the City that this Contract must be approved by September 16, 2011; immediately 
following their approval of the Environmental Assessment (EA).  The EA was recently approved by 
the Federal Rail Administration on September 9, 2011.  Approval of the Contract at the regular 
meeting of September 12th is the first and last opportunity for this contract to be approved by Council.  
If the City does not approve the Contract by September 16, 2011, the FRA indicated that the $8.5 
million grant will be reallocated to another project elsewhere in the country, possibly to another state.     
 
The Contract as submitted is based on estimated costs, which is standard with all MDOT contracts.   
These contracts are prepared for the purpose of obligating the project and before actual costs are 
known.  The City’s reimbursements from MDOT, under the contract, will be based on the actual cost 
incurred as the project proceeds through final design and construction.   
 
Next Steps: 
 
The following is an outline of steps following approval of the Contract.  The process begins with other 
approvals required by FRA; followed by selection of a design consultant, project manager, and 
ending with project completion is as follows: 
 

•   FRA and City Approval of AMTRAK lease agreement  
•  FRA Approval of updated Statement of Work with addition of the Bridge 
•  FRA and City Approval of Host (CN Railroad) Railroad Agreement 
•  RFP for Architectural/Engineering (A/E) Design Consultant 
•  RFP for Construction Manager at Risk (CMR)  
•  FRA Approval of updated Project Management Plan with addition of the Bridge  
•  FRA Approval of updated Financial Plan with addition of the Bridge  
•  Award Contract to A/E Design Consultant 
•  Conduct Design Workshop with A/E Consultant and Planning Commission 
•  City Approval of Revised Site Plan 
•  Complete Final A/E Design Plans 
•  Construction Manager Selection and Construction Procurement 
•  Permit Acquisition 
•  Construction 
•  Final Inspection, Project Acceptance and Grant Close Out 

 
The timeline for completion of all steps is two (2) years from date of Contract approval; September 
12, 2011 to September 11, 2013.   
 
 



3 
 

 
Operation and Maintenance Costs:  
 
The operation and maintenance costs of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility are estimated at 
$30,000 per year, including but not limited to utilities, snow removal, building and building 
maintenance.  Another estimate of these costs will be done following final site design.  The building 
site will be designed to minimize long term maintenance cost.  A lease agreement with AMTRAK will 
offset these costs, as will vending, taxi and other agreements to be negotiated following this Contract 
approval.   
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
The engineer’s estimate of design and construction is $8,484,686.  There is $8,485,212 in federal 
funding provided under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA) pursuant to 
the FRA’s High-Speed Intercity Passenger Rail program (HSIPR).  The project’s design and 
construction is 100% funded with federal ARRA funds.  The project is also funded by a $1.3 million 
grant from the Federal Transit Administration (FTA).  The FTA funds are currently not required for 
design and construction of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility.   
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
The format and content of the Contract has been reviewed by the City Attorney’s Office and is 
consistent with past MDOT contracts approved by City Council for various road projects such as 
Rochester Road, Long Lake Road, Big Beaver and Stephenson Highway projects. 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED AND APPROVED:  
 
____________________________ 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
 
 
G:\Transit Center\MDOT Agreements\To CC re MDOT Capital Contract_r5.doc 

























































 
 

1 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
September 9, 2011 
 
 
TO:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
    
SUBJECT: Proposed Amendment to the Three Year Budget; Retention of Two Sergeants 

and Two Police Officers  
 
 
At our last study session we spoke about the cost effectiveness of the Early Retirement Incentive 
Program (ERIP) and other best practices vis a vis our three year budget.  As you know, the ERIP is 
part and parcel of employee concessions as well as modified collective bargaining agreements and 
reduction in costs for replacement employees.  Because of this, the ERIP/Concession initiative not 
only reduced reliance on Fund Balance, but we now have projected revenues exceeding projected 
expenditures for the first two years of the three year budget.  If we compare the average expenditure 
reductions from the ERIP to the average use of Fund Balance over the next three years, we project 
revenues over expenditures on an average of $600,000 per year. 
 
I wish to thank all employees for making the sacrifice.  We could not have achieved this economic 
sustainability benchmark without them.  And we stand alone in this regard as we know of no other 
Municipal, County or State organization that has matched this achievement.   
 
Turning now to the organizational restructuring and economic sustainability study performed by the 
International City/County Management Association (ICMA), this organization made two 
recommendations pertaining to retention of employees: 
 

1. The streets, drains and parks division of public works would not be sustainable unless we 
reinstated eight positions slated for elimination. 
 

2. The police department would not be sustainable unless four of the thirty eight sworn positions 
slated for elimination were retained. 

 
In other words, proposed cuts made by staff and approved by Council were essentially too deep to be 
sustainable in these areas.  Our three year budget retains the eight positions in public works, but 
does not address the four sworn positions in the police department.   
 
Given the above, I recommend that City Council authorize the retention of two sergeants and two 
police officers slated for elimination in FY 2014. 
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
I-08



 
 

2 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
 
 
C: Gary Mayer, Chief of Police 
 Keith Frye, Police Captain 
 Gerard Scherlinck, Police Captain 
 Monica Irelan, Assistant to the City Manager/Coordinator of Continuous Improvement 
 Peggy Sears, Human Resources Director 
 Thomas Darling, Darling & Associates 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JAS/bt\AGENDA ITEMS\2011\09.12.11 – To M&CC – Proposed Amendment to Three Year Budget  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT August 29, 2011 
 

- 1 - 

Pastor Jack Mannschreck from Big Beaver United Methodist Church gave the Invocation.  The 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given.  
 
A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, August 29, 2011, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road.  Mayor Schilling called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mayor Pro Tem Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  

C-1 No Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations 
 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 

D-1 No Carryover Items  
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

E-1 Public Hearing for the Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) 
for Inteva Products, LLC – 1401 Crooks 

 
Mayor Schilling OPENED the Public Hearing.   
Mayor Schilling CLOSED the Public Hearing after hearing comments from Richard Peters. 
 
Resolution #2011-08-196 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial Development District 
(IDD) for property known as 1401 Crooks, Troy, MI. 48084-7155, Parcel #88-20-32-226-037, in 
accordance with City Council Policy Resolution #2010-08-173; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to forward 
a copy of this resolution to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 30471, 
Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater  
No: Howrylak 

stewartc
Text Box
J-2a



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT August 29, 2011 
 

- 2 - 

 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
E-2 Public Hearing for the Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 

(IFEC) for Inteva Products, LLC – 1401 Crooks 
 
Mayor Schilling OPENED the Public Hearing.   
Mayor Schilling CLOSED the Public Hearing after receiving no comment from the public. 
 
Resolution #2011-08-197 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on August 
29,  2011, established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 1401 
Crooks, Troy, MI. 48084-7155, Parcel # 88-20-32-226-037; and 
 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by Inteva Products LLC, for an Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 1401 Crooks, Troy, MI. 48084-
7155, for six (6) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on August 29, 
2011,  held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the 
possibility that the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Inteva 
Products LLC, at 1401 Crooks, Troy, MI. 48084-7155 may have the effect of substantially 
impeding the operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of the taxing unit; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, The aggregate SEV of real and personal property exempt from ad valorem taxes 
within the City of Troy, after granting this certificate will not exceed 5% of an amount equal to 
the sum of the SEV of the City of Troy, plus the SEV of real and personal property thus 
exempted; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE 
GRANTING of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Inteva Products LLC, at 
1401 Crooks, Troy, MI. 48084-7155 shall not substantially impede the operation of the City of 
Troy or the other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE GRANTING of the 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial soundness of the City 
of Troy, or the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application to for 
an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Inteva Products LLC, Inc., at 1401 
Crooks, Troy, MI. 48084-7155, Parcel # 88-20-32-226-037 , for personal property for a term of 
six (6) years, after completion, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement 
between the City of Troy and Inteva Products LLC, and the payment of the fees in accordance 
with Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT August 29, 2011 
 

- 3 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and Inteva Products LLC, a copy 
of which shall be ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby AUTHORIZED TO COMPLETE the 
Application and TRANSMIT same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling  
No: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  

Reinhardt, Marvin Spoke about tax abatements, Troy Patch and other various topics. 
Mohr, Nicholas Commented on residents and businesses that violate the automatic 

sprinkler system restrictions. 
Peters, Richard Spoke about rail systems and other various topics. 
Eckhout, Fred Spoke about disclosing employee salaries and benefits and Troy 

Family Daze. 
Savage, James Spoke about the Delphi tax abatement. 

 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1  No Postponed Items 
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: None Scheduled 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
I-3 Request for Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 
 
I-4 Streamlining Boards and Committees Pursuant to Direction of City Council 
 
Motion to Separate Items a) Dissolving of the Advisory Committee for Persons with 

Disabilities and b) Dissolving of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens from I-4 
Streamlining Boards and Committees Pursuant to Direction of City Council  
 
Resolution #2011-08-198 
Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded by Fleming 
 

http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere


CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT August 29, 2011 
 

- 4 - 

RESOLVED, That Resolutions a) Dissolving of the Advisory Committee for Persons with 
Disabilities and b) Dissolving of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens are hereby 
SEPARATED from I-4 Streamlining Boards and Committees Pursuant to Direction of City 
Council and will be voted on individually. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-4 Streamlining Boards and Committees Pursuant to Direction of City Council 
 
a) Dissolving of the Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
 
Resolution #2011-08-199 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by Slater 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council reviewed streamlining boards and committees, as a result of 
concerns about economic sustainability due to staffing impacts, and 
 
WHEREAS, By City Council consensus, City Management to was directed to prepare 
appropriate agenda materials relative to several boards and committees; 
 
WHEREAS, The following boards and committees were identified as committee where 
dissolution was appropriate: 
 

 Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
 Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 Ethnic Issues Advisory Board 
 Board of Canvassers 
 Cable Advisory Board 
 Troy Daze Committee 
 Youth Council 

 
WHEREAS, The above referenced boards and committees were initially established by 
resolution of Council and therefore can be dissolved by resolution; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The Advisory Committee for Person with Disabilities 
is hereby DISSOLVED this 29th day of August, 2011; 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Mayor will PREPARE a letter thanking each board or 
committee member for their volunteerism and prior service to the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming 
No: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT August 29, 2011 
 

- 5 - 

 
b) Dissolving of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 
Resolution #2011-08-200 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by Slater 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council reviewed streamlining boards and committees, as a result of 
concerns about economic sustainability due to staffing impacts, and 
 
WHEREAS, By City Council consensus, City Management to was directed to prepare 
appropriate agenda materials relative to several boards and committees; 
 
WHEREAS, The following boards and committees were identified as committee where 
dissolution was appropriate: 
 

 Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
 Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 Ethnic Issues Advisory Board 
 Board of Canvassers 
 Cable Advisory Board 
 Troy Daze Committee 
 Youth Council 

 
WHEREAS, The above referenced boards and committees were initially established by 
resolution of Council and therefore can be dissolved by resolution; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens is 
hereby DISSOLVED this 29th day of August, 2011; 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Mayor will PREPARE a letter thanking each board or 
committee member for their volunteerism and prior service to the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming 
No: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Approve Item I-4 Streamlining Boards and Committees Pursuant 

to Direction of City Council a) through g) 
 
Resolution #2011-08-201 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by Slater 
 
c) Dissolving of the Ethnic Issues Advisory Board 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council reviewed streamlining boards and committees, as a result of 
concerns about economic sustainability due to staffing impacts, and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT August 29, 2011 
 

- 6 - 

 
WHEREAS, By City Council consensus, City Management to was directed to prepare 
appropriate agenda materials relative to several boards and committees; 
 
WHEREAS, The following boards and committees were identified as committee where 
dissolution was appropriate: 
 

 Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
 Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 Ethnic Issues Advisory Board 
 Board of Canvassers 
 Cable Advisory Board 
 Troy Daze Committee 
 Youth Council 

 
WHEREAS, The above referenced boards and committees were initially established by 
resolution of Council and therefore can be dissolved by resolution; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The Ethnic Issues Advisory Board is hereby 
DISSOLVED this 29th day of August, 2011; 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Mayor will PREPARE a letter thanking each board or 
committee member for their volunteerism and prior service to the City of Troy. 
 
d) Dissolving of the Board of Canvassers 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council reviewed streamlining boards and committees, as a result of 
concerns about economic sustainability due to staffing impacts, and 
 
WHEREAS, By City Council consensus, City Management to was directed to prepare 
appropriate agenda materials relative to several boards and committees; 
 
WHEREAS, The following boards and committees were identified as committee where 
dissolution was appropriate: 
 

 Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
 Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 Ethnic Issues Advisory Board 
 Board of Canvassers 
 Cable Advisory Board 
 Troy Daze Committee 
 Youth Council 

 
WHEREAS, The above referenced boards and committees were initially established by 
resolution of Council and therefore can be dissolved by resolution; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The Board of Canvassers is hereby DISSOLVED this 
29th day of August, 2011; 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT August 29, 2011 
 

- 7 - 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Mayor will PREPARE a letter thanking each board or 
committee member for their volunteerism and prior service to the City of Troy. 
 
e) Dissolving of the Cable Advisory Board 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council reviewed streamlining boards and committees, as a result of 
concerns about economic sustainability due to staffing impacts, and 
 
WHEREAS, By City Council consensus, City Management to was directed to prepare 
appropriate agenda materials relative to several boards and committees; 
 
WHEREAS, The following boards and committees were identified as committee where 
dissolution was appropriate: 
 

 Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
 Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 Ethnic Issues Advisory Board 
 Board of Canvassers 
 Cable Advisory Board 
 Troy Daze Committee 
 Youth Council 

 
WHEREAS, The above referenced boards and committees were initially established by 
resolution of Council and therefore can be dissolved by resolution; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The Cable Advisory Board is hereby DISSOLVED 
this 29th day of August, 2011; 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Mayor will PREPARE a letter thanking each board or 
committee member for their volunteerism and prior service to the City of Troy. 
 
f) Dissolving of the Troy Daze Committee 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council reviewed streamlining boards and committees, as a result of 
concerns about economic sustainability due to staffing impacts, and 
 
WHEREAS, By City Council consensus, City Management to was directed to prepare 
appropriate agenda materials relative to several boards and committees; 
 
WHEREAS, The following boards and committees were identified as committee where 
dissolution was appropriate: 
 

 Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
 Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 Ethnic Issues Advisory Board 
 Board of Canvassers 
 Cable Advisory Board 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT August 29, 2011 
 

- 8 - 

 Troy Daze Committee 
 Youth Council 

 
WHEREAS, The above referenced boards and committees were initially established by 
resolution of Council and therefore can be dissolved by resolution; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The Troy Daze Committee is hereby DISSOLVED 
this 29th day of August, 2011; 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Mayor will PREPARE a letter thanking each board or 
committee member for their volunteerism and prior service to the City of Troy. 
 
g) Dissolving of the Youth Council 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council reviewed streamlining boards and committees, as a result of 
concerns about economic sustainability due to staffing impacts, and 
 
WHEREAS, By City Council consensus, City Management to was directed to prepare 
appropriate agenda materials relative to several boards and committees; 
 
WHEREAS, The following boards and committees were identified as committee where 
dissolution was appropriate: 
 

 Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
 Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 Ethnic Issues Advisory Board 
 Board of Canvassers 
 Cable Advisory Board 
 Troy Daze Committee 
 Youth Council 

 
WHEREAS, The above referenced boards and committees were initially established by 
resolution of Council and therefore can be dissolved by resolution; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The Youth Council is hereby DISSOLVED this 29th 
day of August, 2011; 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Mayor will PREPARE a letter thanking each board or 
committee member for their volunteerism and prior service to the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT August 29, 2011 
 

- 9 - 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2011-08-202 
Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) J-04a and J-6, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2011-08-202-J-2 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 

a. Regular City Council Meeting Of August 22, 2011 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions  
 
b. Standard Purchasing Resolution #3: Exercise Renewal Option – Outdoor Light 

Maintenance and Repair Contract 
 
Resolution #2011-08-202-J-4b 
 
WHEREAS, On September 28, 2009, a contract to furnish all labor, tools, equipment, 
transportation service, and traffic controls to provide two (2) year requirements of street, 
parking lot, and athletic field light maintenance and repair with an option to renew for one 
additional year was awarded to the low total bidder, Northern Sign Company, Inc. of Pontiac, 
Michigan (Resolution #2009-09-290-F-4a); and 
 
WHEREAS, Northern Sign Company has agreed to exercise the option to renew the contract 
under the same pricing, terms and conditions; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES and 
APPROVES the option to renew the contract with Northern Sign Company Inc. to provide 
outdoor light maintenance and repair under the same pricing, terms, and conditions for one-year 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT August 29, 2011 
 

- 10 - 

at unit prices and discounts contained in the bid tabulation opened August 19, 2009, to expire 
September 30, 2012. 
 
c. Standard Purchasing Resolution #3: Exercise Renewal Option – Street Light 

Installation and Replacement 
 
Resolution #2011-08-202-J-4c 
 
WHEREAS, On September 28, 2009, a contract to furnish all labor, tools, equipment, 
transportation service, and traffic controls to provide two (2) year requirements of street, 
parking lot, and athletic field light installation and replacement with an option to renew for one 
additional year was awarded to the low total bidder, Corby Energy Services, Inc of Belleville, 
Michigan (Resolution #2009-09-290-F-4b); and 
 
WHEREAS, Corby Energy Services, Inc has agreed to exercise the option to renew the 
contract under the same pricing, terms and conditions; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES and 
APPROVES the option to renew the contract with Corby Energy Services Inc to provide street 
light installation and replacement under the same pricing, terms, and conditions for one-year at 
unit prices and discounts contained in the bid tabulation opened August 26, 2009, to expire 
September 30, 2012. 
 
d. Standard Purchasing Resolution #2:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Asphalt Patching Material - Cold 
 
Resolution #2011-08-202-J-4d 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a seasonal contract for asphalt 
patching material – QPR/UPM to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, Saginaw 
Asphalt Paving Company of Saginaw, MI, for an estimated total cost of $38,740.00, at 
the unit price contained in the bid tabulation opened August 11, 2011, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with a contract expiration of 
April 30, 2012; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid and proposal documents, including insurance 
certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
J-5 Application Regarding New Dance Permit for the St. Andrews Society of Detroit 
 
(a) New Dance Permit 
 
Resolution #2011-08-202-J-5a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL a liquor license 
request as indicated below, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE 
the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT August 29, 2011 
 

- 11 - 

Liquor License Applicant : The St. Andrews Society of Detroit 

Type of License Requested : 
New Dance Permit to be held in conjunction with 2010 Club 

Licensed Business 

Located at : 2360 Rochester Court, Troy, MI  48084, Oakland County 

MLCC Request # : 607210 

 
and 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Resolution #2011-08-202-J-5b 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter into agreements with applicants 
for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with the liquor license applicant named in the approved resolution above, and hereby 
AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions  
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution #1: Award to Low Bidder Contract 11-6 – 

Rochester, Chopin to Larchwood Pavement Rehabilitation 
 
Resolution #2011-08-203 
Moved by McGinnis 
Seconded by Slater 
 
RESOLVED, That Contract No. 11-6 - Rochester, Chopin to Larchwood Pavement 
Rehabilitation, be AWARDED to Barrett Paving Materials Inc., 5800 Cherry Hill Road, Ypsilanti, 
MI 48198, or their low total bid amount of $260,928.25. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 25% of the total project cost. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater  
No: Fleming, Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
J-6 Contract Extension – Banking Services 
 
Resolution #2011-08-204 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT August 29, 2011 
 

- 12 - 

Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
WHEREAS, On July 19, 1999, City Council approved a three (3) year contract to provide 
Banking Services with an option to renew the contract for an additional three (3) year period to 
Fifth Third Bank (formerly Old Kent Bank), the most qualified and lowest bidder as a result of a 
request for proposal process (Resolution #99-349-E-2c); and on May 6, 2002, exercised the 
renewal option for an additional three years under the same prices, terms and conditions 
expiring September 30, 2005 (Resolution #2002-05-288-E2); and on June 20, 2005, the 
contract was extended for a three-year period expiring October 1, 2008, with fee reductions in 
Controlled Disbursement Accounts from $100.00 to $50.00 per account per month and deposit 
fees from $.60 cents to $.50 cents per deposit (Resolution #2005-06-304-F3); and on July 
21,2008, Troy City Council approved a three-year contract to provide Banking Services with 
Fifth Third Bank under the same pricing, terms and conditions expiring October 1, 2011 
(Resolution #2008-07-241); and 
 
WHEREAS, Fifth Third Bank has offered to extend their contract for two years under the same 
terms and conditions with a revised pricing structure as indicated below; and 
 
WHEREAS, There has been an on-going joint effort between the City and Fifth Third Bank 
personnel to integrate appropriate technology, implement proper security procedures, create 
reporting structures, execute feedback mechanisms and provide end-user training to achieve 
optimal performance; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a two-year 
contract to provide Banking Services with Fifth Third Bank under the same prices, terms and 
conditions with a 50% reduction in the pass-through FDIC insurance assessment fee charged 
to all non-interest bearing deposit account balances each month over the next two years, all to 
expire October 1, 2013.  
 
Yes: Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling  
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 
of Business 
 
Resolution #2011-08-205 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council, Rule #6 Order of Business to take action on an item that does not appear on the 
Agenda. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT August 29, 2011 
 

- 13 - 

 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Motion to Conduct a Study Session to Discuss Cost Effectiveness of the Early 
Retirement Incentive Program (ERIP), and Other Best Practices 
 
Resolution #2011-08-206 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Study Session, to discuss Cost 
Effectiveness of the Early Retirement Incentive Program (ERIP), and Other Best Practices. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time): None Submitted 

 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

L-1  No Council Referrals Submitted 
 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 
 

N. REPORTS 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – July 11, 2011 
b) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – August 8, 2011 
c) Planning Commission/Draft – August 9, 2011 
d) Zoning Board of Appeals/Final – July 19, 2011 

Noted and Filed 

N-2 Department Reports: None Submitted 
Noted and Filed 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT August 29, 2011 
 

- 14 - 

N-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation from Stephanie Pierson of Brookdale Senior Living Thanking 

Officers Cole and Barrows for their K-9 Demonstration 
b) Letter of Appreciation from Mr. and Mrs. Bielski Thanking Officers of the Troy Police 

Dept. for the Three Home Invasion Arrests in Charnwood Subdivision 
Noted and Filed 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 
a) Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding 

Notice of Hearing for the Customers of Consumers Energy Company and The Detroit 
Edison Company – Case No. U-16055 

Noted and Filed 

O. STUDY ITEMS 

O-1  No Study Items Presented 
 

P. CLOSED SESSION:  

P-1  No Closed Session Requested 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 8:34 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 8:39 PM. 
 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 9:51 PM. 
 
 
 
 

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
 
 
 
M. Aileen Bittner 
Acting City Clerk 

 

 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:        September 1, 2011                    
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development  
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
    
Subject: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution #1: Award to Low Bidder 
  Contract 11-3 – Section 35 Pavement Rehabilitation 
 
 
Background 
 
The water mains in the section 35 subdivisions were replaced in 2010.  The existing asphalt streets: Sheffield, 
Kenyon, Lyons, Burtman, Wacon, Redwood, Jamaica, and Key West will receive base repairs, curb & gutter 
repairs, some drive approach replacements, catch basin repairs, mill and overlay.  A pavement repair and 
resurfacing project is typically scheduled the following construction season to repair the existing roads due to 
damage caused by the water main construction.  The work is anticipated to start late-September and be 
completed by late-November. 
 
Bids were received and publicly read on August 31, 2011.  The low bid of $860,776.00 was submitted by Ajax 
Paving Industries, Inc., as can be seen in the attached bid tabulation summary.  The engineer’s estimate at the 
time of bidding was $937,000.00.  The low bid is therefore $76,224.00 or 8.13% below the engineer’s estimate. 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that City Council award a contract for the Section 35 Pavement Rehabilitation project to 
Ajax Paving Industries, Inc., 830 Kirts Blvd., Suite 100, Troy, MI 48084 for their low total bid amount of 
$860,776.00.   
 
In addition, we are requesting authorization to approve additional work, if needed, not to exceed 25% of the 
original project cost due to unknown pavement conditions exposed after the milling operation and unknown 
quantities of base repair that may be needed prior to placement of the asphalt overlay.  Please know that we 
have incorporated a 25% contingency for this type of work since 2006. 
 
Fund Availability 
 
Funds for this work are included in the 2011-12 Water Fund.  The budgeted amount includes funds for 
construction, inspection and contingencies. 
 
Legal Considerations 
 
Work was competitively bid and publicly opened with four (4) bidders responding.  The award is contingent 
upon submission of proper proposal and bid documents, including insurance certificates, bonds and all 
specified requirements. 
 
G:\Contracts\Contracts - 2011\11-3 - Section 35 Pavement Rehabilitation\Correspondence\Bid Award_r1.doc 

bittnera
Text Box
J-04a



Prepared by: Antonio Cicchetti Page 1 9/1/2011

BID TABULATION
CONTRACT 11-3

City of Troy
Oakland County, Michigan

 Total Bid Amount 

Ajax Paving Industries, Inc. 860,776.00$                         

Barrett Paving Materials, Inc. 939,859.00$                         

Pro-Line Asphalt Paving Corp. 972,810.97$                         

Cadillac Asphalt, LLC 1,006,858.00$                      

Section 35 Pavement Rehabilitation

Bids Due:  August 31, 2011
Project #  09.501.5



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:            August 24, 2011              
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
  Larysa Figol, Sr. Right-of-Way Representative 
 
Subject: Request for Acceptance of a Sanitary Sewer Easement from Cornerstone  
  Village 1, LLC - Sidwell #88-20-27-201-049  
 
 
Background 
 
As part of the development and improvement of a property located in Section 27, on the south side of 
Big Beaver and west of Rochester Road, the Engineering department has received an easement for 
sanitary sewer. 
 
The easement was granted to the City of Troy by Cornerstone Village 1, LLC, owner of the property 
having Sidwell #88-20-27-201-049. 
  
The format and content of this easement is consistent with conveyances previously accepted by City 
Council. The consideration amount on this document is $1.00. 
 
Recommendation 
 
City Management recommends that City Council accept the attached easement consistent with our 
policy of accepting easements for development and improvement purposes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LAF/G\MEMOSTOMAYORANDCC\TroyMarketPlacSanitarySewerEsmt.doc 

bittnera
Text Box
J-05









GGM/TC      i:\1 command administration\command staff\mayer\council agenda item\cc shir tikvah parking waiver sept 2011.doc 

 

 
August 26, 2011 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Gary G. Mayer, Chief of Police   
   William Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT:  Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions  
 
Background: 
 
The Congregation Shir Tikvah is requesting that the parking restrictions on the East side of 
Northfield Parkway from the entrance of Boulan Park to the entrance of the synagogue be waived 
on the following dates and times: 

 
 Wednesday, September 28, 2011, 7:00 pm – 11:00 pm 
 Thursday, September 29, 2011, 9:00 am – 5:00 pm 
 Friday, October 7, 2011, 7:00 pm – 11:00 pm 
 Saturday, October 8, 2011, 9:00 am – 9:00 pm 

 
Congregation Shir Tikvah is conducting events related to the observance of the High Holidays on 
these dates and times; although they have arranged for additional parking at Stonehaven Church 
on Wattles Road, they fear they will not have sufficient parking space for all attendees. 
 
The waiving of the restrictions would allow attendees to park on the dirt shoulder of Northfield 
Parkway. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
City Ordinance prohibits parking on Northfield Parkway; therefore, City Council action is required to 
grant a variance. 
 
Congregation Shir Tikvah makes such requests and is granted a variance regularly; no problems 
have ever been reported.  
 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-06



bittnera
Text Box
J-07









































ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES – Final June 29, 2011 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held June 29, 2011, at City Hall, 500 W. 
Big Beaver Road. Deputy City Clerk Bittner called the Meeting to order at 1:00 PM. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT:  David Anderson, M. Aileen Bittner – Deputy City Clerk 
ABSENT:  Timothy Dewan, Tonni L. Bartholomew – City Clerk 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of May 26, 2011  
 
Resolution #EC-2011-06-008 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Bittner 
 
RESOLVED, That the Election Commission hereby APPROVES the Minutes of May 26, 
2011 as presented. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bittner 
No:  None 
Absent: Bartholomew, Dewan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Election Inspector Assignments – August 2, 2011 Election 
 
Resolution #EC-2011-06-009 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Bittner 

 
RESOLVED, That Election Inspectors be APPOINTED for the August 2, 2011 Election, 
as presented by the City Clerk. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bittner 
No:  None 
Absent: Bartholomew, Dewan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 1:05 PM. 
 
 
 

M. Aileen Bittner 
Deputy City Clerk 

 

bittnera
Text Box
N-01a



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL AUGUST 9, 2011 
  
 
 

1 
 

Vice Chair Maxwell called the Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order 
at 7:30 p.m. on August 9, 2011 in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent Robert Schultz 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-08-048 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Hutson, Schultz 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-08-049 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the July 26, 2011 Special/Study meeting as 
prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Hutson, Schultz 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

bittnera
Text Box
N-01b



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL AUGUST 9, 2011 
  
 
 

2 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUESTS 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN 
REVIEW (File Number SU 390) – Proposed Holiday Inn Express Hotel & Suites, East 
side of Stephenson Highway, North of 14 Mile (466 Stephenson Highway), Section 35, 
Currently Zoned OM (Office Mixed Use) District 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 

Resolution # PC-2011-08-050 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed Holiday Inn Express Hotel & Suites, located on the east side of Stephenson 
Highway, north of 14 Mile Road, at 466 Stephenson Highway, Section 35, within the 
OM (Office Mixed Use) zoning district, be granted, subject to the following: 
 
1. Show lot coverage calculation. 
2. Add a bike rack with capacity of at least two bicycles. 
3. Satisfy landscape requirements as follows: 
 a. Add one deciduous street tree. 
 b. Provide landscaped area calculations. 
 c. Correct errors and inconsistencies in the landscape plan and existing tree 

inventory. 
 d. Provide detailed landscaping calculations showing how all requirements of 

Section 13.02 are being met. 
 e. Add a 3-foot landscape berm in the lawn area between the parking lot and the 

right-of-way for Stephenson Highway, specifically along the length of the 
actual area where the 10 parking spaces facing Stephenson are proposed. 

 f. Show protective techniques for trees proposed to remain. 
4. Seal remaining architectural sheets. 
5. Provide samples, swatches, or manufacturer’s specification sheets of the 

predominant proposed exterior materials and colors of all buildings and 
permanent structures, including walls and fences. 

 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Hutson, Schultz 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL AUGUST 9, 2011 
  
 
 

3 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN 
REVIEW (File Number SU 391) – Proposed Kroger Retail Fuel Center D-464, Southwest 
Corner of South Boulevard and Crooks (2105 W. South Boulevard), Section 5, Currently 
Zoned NN (Neighborhood Node) District (Controlled by Consent Judgment) 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 

Resolution # PC-2011-08-051 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby recommends to City Council that 
Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the proposed Kroger 
Retail Fuel Center, located at the southwest corner of South Boulevard and Crooks 
Road, Section 5, within the NN (Neighborhood Node) zoning district, controlled by 
Consent Judgment, be granted, subject to the following: 
 
1. If fire suppression is required, demonstrate that the fire protection devices under 

the canopy are architecturally screened so that the tanks are not directly visible 
from the street. 

2. Demonstrate compliance with light levels along the South Boulevard and Crooks 
Road rights-of-way. 

 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Hutson, Schultz 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

7. SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 
388 A) – Proposed Adult Foster Care Home, North Side of Square Lake, East of Beach 
(2420 W. Square Lake), Section 6, Currently Zoned R-1A (One Family Residential) 
District 
 
A variance request for this item is scheduled at the August 16, 2011 Zoning Board of 
Appeals. 





ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES – Draft September 1, 2011 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held September 1, 2011, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Acting City Clerk Bittner called the Meeting to order at 8:15 
AM. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT: David Anderson, Timothy Dewan, M. Aileen Bittner – Acting City Clerk 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of June 29, 2011  
 
Resolution #EC-2011-09-010 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Dewan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Election Commission hereby APPROVES the Minutes of June 29, 
2011 as presented. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Dewan, Bittner 
No:  None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Consolidation of Precincts 
 
Resolution #EC-2011-09-011 
Moved by Dewan 
Seconded by Anderson  

 
RESOLVED, That the Election Commission of the City of Troy hereby AUTHORIZES that 
applicable precincts servicing qualified electors in the City of Troy be CONSOLIDATED 
for the November 8, 2011 Election in accordance with MCL 168.659. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Dewan, Bittner 
No:  None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:20 AM. 
 
 
 

M. Aileen Bittner 
Acting City Clerk 

 

bittnera
Text Box
N-01c



bittnera
Text Box
N-03a



bittnera
Text Box
N-03b



bittnera
Text Box
N-05





 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:              August 30, 2011               
 
 
To:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members     
  
From:  John Szerlag, City Manager 

Aileen Bittner, Acting City Clerk 
 
 
Subject: Resolution #11097 – Oakland County Board of Commissioners – Support for Amending 

MCL 168-449(3) to Eliminate the Requirement that Local Clerks Send Corrected Voter 
Identifications Cards Due to Redistricting Resulting from the Decennial Census 

 
 
The 2010 Census reported a loss of population for the State of Michigan which triggered a need for 
redistricting.  While the Michigan State Legislature has worked through the redistricting process, the 
Oakland County Board of Commissioners has decided to support restructuring of some of the local 
clerks’ duties in relation to voting regulations.   
 
MCL 168-449(3) requires local clerks to notify voters of changes in their voter data via a new voter 
identification card.  The amendment that the Oakland County Board of Commissioners supports 
eliminates this requirement and replaces it with a requirement to simply publish a public notice. 
 
Although, on the face of this amendment, there is a cost savings in printing and mailing, the voter 
confusion and error may not be worth the minimal money saved. The City Clerk’s Office has always 
held to the practice of mailing corrected voter identification cards whenever any changes to voter data 
occur. In addition to mailing cards, the City Clerk’s Office posts notices of all changes in City Hall, at 
polling locations on Election Day; and, publishes all changes on the City website, and in the 
newspaper of record. 
 
The City Clerk’s Office will continue to notify voters of any and all changes to voter data with every 
means available to the City, including mailing corrected voter identification cards. A major function of 
the City Clerk is to assure that voters have the most up-to-date and accurate information available to 
them for Election Day, and this function will not be altered. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AB/G:\   City Council\ Agenda\Clerk Council Agenda Items\Elections – 201108 OC Commissioner Res - Voter ID's for Redistricting.doc 

bittnera
Text Box
N-06

















bittnera
Text Box
O-01


	20110912
	AGENDA: September 12, 2011
	COVER LETTER:
	VISION STATEMENT & GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations
	a)  Proclamation – Patriot Week September 11 – 17, 2011
	b) Proclamation in Recognition of James and Betty Savage on the Occasion of Their 60th Anniversary


	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 No Public Hearings

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT:
	G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1  No Postponed Items

	I.  REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: None Scheduled
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled
	I-3 Request for Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested
	I-4 Confirmation of Appointment of Aileen Bittner as City Clerk
	I-5 Bid Waiver – Casualty and Property Insurance – Two (2) Year Renewal with the Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority (MMRMA) for November 2011-2012 and November 2012-2013
	I-6 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award - Communications Strategy
	I-7 Approval of MDOT Capital Contract for the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility, MDOT Contract No. 2011-0231, Project No. 113143
	I-8 Proposed Amendment to the Three Year Budget; Retention of Two Sergeants and Two Police Officers

	J.  CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	a) Regular City Council Meeting of August 29, 2011

	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted
	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 11-3 – Section 35 Pavement Rehabilitation

	J-5 Request for Acceptance of a Sanitary Sewer Easement from Cornerstone Village 1, LLC – Sidwell #88-20-27-201-049
	J-6 Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions
	J-7 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Ann Walsh – Morse Elementary School PTO

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted
	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time): None Submitted

	L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	L-1  Council Referrals: None Submitted

	M. COUNCIL COMMENTS
	M-1   No Council Comments Advanced

	N. REPORTS
	N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a) Election Commission-Final-June 29, 2011
	b) Planning Commission-Final-August 9, 2011
	c) Election Commission-Draft-September 1, 2011

	N-2 Department Reports: None Submitted
	N-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	a) Letter of Appreciation from John Siedlik and Erin Whaley of Binson’s Home Health Care Centers to the Troy Fire Department
	b) Letter of Appreciation from John F. Myszak, III, of Somerset Collection to Chief Mayer, Thanking Sgt. Szuminski, Officer Morgan and Officer Bordo

	N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted
	N-5  Notice of Hearing for the Gas Customers of Consumers Energy Company Case No. U-16149-R
	N-6  Resolution #11097 – Oakland County Board of Commissioners – Support for Amending MCL 168-449(3) to Eliminate the Requirement that Local Clerks Send Corrected Voter Identification Cards Due to Redistricting Resulting from the Decennial Census

	O. STUDY ITEMS
	O-1  Study Item

	P. CLOSED SESSION:
	P-1  No Closed Session Requested

	Q. ADJOURNMENT




